FGAL

IN THE COPY LEGAL

# SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE

## OF Mississippi

# FILED

### FEB 1 5 2007

STEVEN SHEITON Petitioner, Pro se

Versus

STATE OF Mississippi Respondent

NO. 2006-TS-02128-CUA 2006-TS-02134-COA

BRIEF FOR PETITIONER

STEVEN SHELTON#40281 Wilkerson Co. Corr. FAC: I.TY P.O. bx 1079 WOODVILLE, MS 39669

EGAL

•

#

STATEMENT OF ISSUES
STATEMENT OF CASE
FACTS 2
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT
ARGUMENT
ISSUE I
ISSUE II
ISSUE III
ISSUE IV
Conclusion.
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE



.

•

the second states and the second states and

LEGAL

• • •

# TABLE OF AUTMORITIES

## CASES

<u>CASES</u>
Alford v North Carolina, 291 U.S. 82 (1934)
BALAWAJder V Johnson, NO. 99-10807, 252 F3d 1357 (STUCIP. 2001). 6
Bell v STIPTe, _ so. 2d_ (miss. 1999)10
Bounds v Smith, 430 U.S. 817 (1977) 5,6
BURGIN V STATE, SZZ S.W. Zd 159 (MO. APP. 1975)
Campbell v STATE, 611 So.2d ZuA, 210 (1992)
GASTON V STATE, 817 So. Zd 613,616 (MS. CT. APP. ZOUZ)6
Hill v Lockhaer, 474 U.S. 52 (1985)
Minnifield v STATE, 585 Solid 723 Miss, Lexis 530
MCMANN 397 U.S. 759 (1970)
mowdy v STATE, 638 So. 22 738, 747 (miss. 19974)
Myers v STATE, 583 Sozd 174, 177 (miss 1991) 11
VIA V SUPERINTENDENT, POWHATAN CORR.CTR. 643 F30 167 (4Mcir. 1981)9
Von Molke v Gilles, 332 U.S. 208 (1948)

## STATUTES

MCA 99-39-5(2) (Rev. 2000).		
-----------------------------	--	--

.

## OTHER AUTHORITIES

MISS. R. APP. P. 3 (c)	
Fifth Cie. CT. R. 47.5.4	
U.S. CONST. GTL AMENd	
U.S. CONST. 14 The Amend 9	

- ; -

Less Low Land

## STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

<u>ISSUE NO.T.</u> Whether PETITIONER'S FIRST APPEAL S'hould have been dismissed in the TR'AL COURT?

<u>ISSUE NO.II</u>: Whether Original Post Conviction Motion should have been time barred?

ISSUE NO.III: Whether Counsel was ineffective by Advising to plea givity before Conducting REASONABLE PRETRIAL INVESTIGATION OF Applicable law AND FACTS?

ISSUE NO.TY : Whether COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE TO PRESENT CONDITIONS OF PLEA THAT GO UNFULFILLED?

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This APPEAL PROCEEDS from RANKIN COUNTY, MISSISSIFFI AND A JUDGEMENT OF GUILTY FOR TWO OFFENSES OF SALE OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE AGAINST STEVEN SHELTON, RESULTING INCONCURRENT SENTENCES OF 30 YEARS, 18 SUSpended 12 TO SERVE WITH S POST RELEASE SUPERVISION TO RUN CONCURRENT WITH A PRIOR FEDERAL CONVICTION BY PLEA ASREEMENT ON OCT. 4, 2001. HONORABLE SAMAC RicHARDSON, CIRCUIT JUDGE, PRESIDING. STEVEN Shelton is PRESENTLY INCARCERATED WITH MISSISSIPPI depARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS.



## FACTS

ON OCT. 3, 2005 STEVEN Shelton The Petitioner, PRO SE, delivered his MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION Relief To The PRISON AUTHORITES FOR MAILING. The CLERK of the CIRCUIT COURT IN RANKIN COUNTY Mississippi Returned The Petitioners Motion UNFILED with A NOTATION OF INCOMPLETE. AFTER Finding his error Petitioner Returned his MOTION THAT WAS FILED ON OCT. 21, 2005. ON OCT. 24, 2005 The TRIAL COURT devied The MOTION AS being Time barred Pursuant To 99-37-5(2) Miss. Code ANN. (Rev. ZOCO) Shelton Sent A MISTITLED MOTION OF APPEAL ON NOV. 3, 2005 AND WAS devied ON NOV.16, 2005 (EX. B) Although The Petitioner WAS UNAWARE OF THIS DENIAL UNTI APPROX. OCT. 25, 2006 (EX. A) When he Recieved A Copy for his records. The Petitioner Filed A MOTION FOR OUT OF TIME APPEAL TO THE TRIAL COURT ON OCT. 25, 2006 which was denied on Nov. 22; 2006.

# SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Shelton states he was coerced into

Land Land

ENTERING GUILTY PLEA'S TO TWO (2) SEPERATE COUNTS of SAle of Controlled Substance by his Retained Counsel He was led to believe that Regardless of his peoclaimed innocense That if he Took The CASES TO TRIAL he would be found guilty RegARDless of the evidence And Sentenced to life without PARole. Sheltons Attorney Promised CONCURRENT SENTENCE'S OF 18 years, 16 suspended, 12 TO Serve with 5 ON POST Release Supervision TO RUN CONCURRENT WITH HIS PRIOR FEDERAL Sentence if he would pleA guilty. Shelton ARGUES THAT by his ATTORNEY FILING NO PRETRIAL MOTIONS TO EVALUATE THE VALIDITY OF THE EVIDENCE, The Plea's of 18 years being withdrawn during The Sentenceing hearing and Replaced with 30 year sentence's And his sentence's haveing not RUN CONCURRENT with his prior Federal Sentence Render's his Counsel ineffective And his plea's UNINTELLIGENT, UNKNOWING, INVOLUNTARY AND THUS CONSTITUTIONALLY INFIRM. PETITIONER STATES his Post Conviction Motions Should Not have been dismissed as Time barred and that his APPEAL should have been granted or its devial Mode KNOWN TO him.

LEGAL

-3-

### ARGUMENTS

ISSUE NO. I Whether Petitioner's First APPEAL should have been dismissed in the TRIAL COURT?

PETITIONERS POST CONVICTION MOTION'S WERE devied ON OCT. 24, 2005. Petitioner Filed A MOTION Titled OUT of TIME "APPEAL ON NOV. 3, 2005. PETITIONER WAS UNAWARE OF THE CORRECT FORMAT AND PROCEDURES TO PERFECT APPEAL due to the inability to access Research materials during his incarceration. Petitioner Reasoned that if his Time had Tolled AN OUT OF TIME "APPEAL WAS his only Avenue in seeking Review of his CASE. MINNIFIELD V STATE, 585 So. Ed 723, MISS. Lexis 530, Minni Field Attempted, As best he Could, given his incarcepation, to communicate his desire to APPEAL within the thirty days Allowed Petitioner STATES even Though Mis-Titled his Motion should have been Recogniized AS his WANT OF APPENI Miss R. APP. P. 3 (.) Which STATES IN PART ... AN APPEAL SHAll NOT be dismissed for informality of form or TITLE OF MOTION.

EGAL

LEGAL

ISSUE NO. II : Whether ORIGINAL POST CONVICTION MOTIONS Should MAVE bEEN TIME BARRED?

PETITIONER SUBMITS UPCCRA THREE-YEAR STATUTE of LIMITATIONS REQUIRED IN CASES OF A Guilty pleA, A MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION Relief MUST be Filed within Three (3) YEARS AFTER THE ENTRY OF THE JUDGEMENT OF CONVICTION ID. THE LIMITATION FOR STATE PRISONERS TO FILE A MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION RELIEF "RUNS, UNLESS TOLLED, AND IN "APPROPRIATE CIRCUMSTANCES" IT CAN be TOLLED CAMPBELL & STATE, GIL SOLD 201, 210 (1992).

IN ORDER TO COME WITHIN THESE APPROPRIATE CIRCUMSTANCES," THE PETITIONER MUST Show THAT: O) HE WAS PREVENTED FROM Filing A POST CONVICTION MOTION (2) BY STATE ACTION (3) IN VIOLATION OF THE CONSTITUTION OR FEDERAL LAW, ARGUING THAT HE HAS A CONSTITUTION OR FEDERAL LAW, ARGUING THAT HE HAS A CONSTITUTION OR FEDERAL LAW, ARGUING THAT HE HAS A CONSTITUTION AL RIGHT TO MEANINGFUL ACCESS TO THE COURTS THROUGH ADEQUATE LAW LIBRARY OR ASSISTANCE FROM LEGALLY TRAINED PERSONNEL. BY DEING DENSED THESE IS JUST AS MUCH IMPEDIMENT AS IF THE STATE WERE TO TAKE "AFFIRMATIVE STEPS" TO PREVENT THE PETITIONER FROM FILING HIS POST CONVICTION MOTION. THE ADSENCE OF SOME ASSISTANCE FROM LEGALLY TRAINED PERSONNEL VIOLATED THE PETITIONER'S FIRST AMENDMENT RIGHTS THROUGH THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO ACCESS TO THE COURTS BOUNDS X

-5-

EGAL

Smith, 430 U.S. 817 (1977). Additionally, the Petitioner Took Action in The United States District Court that he has been demed Access to the LAW LIDRARY And THAT he was concerned that he Would Not be Able to file his Post Condiction Motion before the Statute of Limitations expired see, Memorandum Opinion and Order (Exci-) Ry Virtue of AN inadeguate Law Library Constitutes A "STATE CREATED impediment" there by Tolling the Three year Limitation period citing Balama Jder Virtue of AN 0.99-10807, 252 F.30 1357 (STATE 2001) See Also, FIFTH CIRCUIT Rule 47.5.4.

The Petitioner KNEW THAT The UPCRRA existed And THAT it imposed A Three (3) year limitation And because he did that "AFF irmative Action" before The STATUTE of limitations expired <u>Caston v STATE</u>, 817 SO-2d 613, 616 (Miss. CT. APP. 2002). As The Petitioner Points Out, he Mailed his Post Conviction Motion To the Court for Fileing ON OCT. 3, 2005, A day before his deadline expired.

FURTHER, THE PETITIONER PRESENTED EVIDENCE TO SUPPORT HIS POSITION THAT THE CLERK OF RANKIN COUNTY RETURNED HIS POST CONVICTION MOTION "UNFILED" FOR THESE REASONS, TOO, H.S POST CONVICTION MOTION IS NOT TIME BARRED AND THE CLAIMS ASSERTED HERIN Should be ADDRESSED ON THE MERITS.

ISSUE NO.III : Whether Counsel WAS INEFFECTIVE by Advising To pleA guilty before Conducting REASONABLE PRETRIAL INVESTIGATION OF APPLICABLE IAW AND FACTS?

Petitioner Asserts And Affides in his Sworn Affidavit under penalty of personry, Attached And incorporated here to by reference; That his retained Counsel Advised and Persuaded him to Plead guilty to the charges (2) of Sale of Controlled Substance, before Conducting Rens-ONAble investigation of the IAW AND FACTS. Retained Affides that but for Counsels Constitutionally deficient erroneous Advise And persuasion, he would have Maintained and professed his Actual innocense before A Jury of his peers.

Petitioner Asserts That Counsels deficient Performance in Not investigating Applicable law before Advising And Perisurding Petitioner to plead guilty is well outside AN Object Able STANDARD OF A REASONABLE STANDARD of effective Representation That prejudice is presumed, supra.

The long STANDING TEST FOR DETERMINING The Validity of A guilty plea is whether the plea Represents A Voluntary AND intelligent Choice AMONG THE AlterNATIVE COURSES OF

- 7-

ACTIONS OPEN TO THE DEFENDANT See, AlFORD V NORTH CAROLINA, 291 U.S. 82 (1934). WHEN REPRESENTED by Coursel during A pleA, The VolunTARINESS OF The plea depends on whether Counsels Advice To pleA guilty was within the wide RANGE OF Competence demanded of Attorneys in CRIMINAL CASES MCMANN, SUPRA, 397 U.S. 759 (1970). A defendant has a Right to make A REASONAbly informed decision whether to enter A plea of guilty.see Hill v Lockhart, 474 U.S. SZ (1985). PR.OR TO TRIAL, PETITIONER WAS ENTITLED TO RELY UPON his ATTORNEY TO MAKE AN INDEPENDANT EXAMINATION of the facts, circumstances, pleadings and laws involved And Then To Offer his informed. OPINION AS TO WHAT PIER TO ENTER. YON MOLTKE V Gilles, 332 U.S. Zo8 (1948). Where The Allesed errar is failure to investigate or discover EXCULPATORY EVIDENCE, THE DETERMINATION OF whether the error "prejudiced" the Petitioner by CAUSING him to plead sivity RATHER THAN elect TRIAL depends on The like hood that proper investigation or discovery of evidence would have led counsel to change his Recom-MENDATION AS TO WHAT PLEA TO ENTER SMITHELY, where the Alleged error is failure to Advise of A potential Affirmative defense to the CRIME Charged, The Resolution of The "PREJUDICE"

LEGAL

Will depend largely on whether The Affirmative defense likely would have succeeded at TRIAL see <u>Hill supra, 474</u> U.S. 52 (1985). This case does Not involve a Situation where the defendant was competently advised of the law and simply choose to plead guilty and forego a TRIAL RATHER, in This case, the Petitioner was deprived of the opportunity to Make an informed decision based upon Adequate legal Advice.

Actitioners position is that he was forced to pleA guilty to Avoid Recieving A life Sentence because his lawyer was unprepared citing <u>V.A.</u> <u>V Superintendent, Powhaton Corr. CTR.</u>, 643 Fed 167(41h cir. 1981): despite the fact that the pleA TRANSCR: pt facially demonstrates A Voluntary pleA. Throughout These proceedings, From the time of ARRIAGNMENT UNTIL he Accepted his lawyer's Advice to pleAd guilty, he had had insisted on going to TRIAL ON A pleA OF NOT guilty.

Petitioner Retained A Second Attorney with The understanding he would be Afforded Adequate Representation. Twice, he had Rejected The Advice That he Accept A plea bargain, Petitioner had A Eight to plead Not guilty And So to TRIAL US CONST. AMEND. Six As Afforded Through The Fourteenth Amend. So, he was prejudiced because his Attorney was

UNPREPARED TO REPRESENT him effectively.

ISSUE NO. IV .: Whether COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE TO PRESENT CONDITIONS OF PLEA THAT GO UNFULFILLED?

ONE OF THE PROVISIONS OF PETITIONER'S PLEA AGREEMENT WAS THAT HIS CONCURRENT STATE SENTences were to RUN CONCURRENT with his existing Federal Sentence. There is no record of This provision being implemented and petitioner CAN FIND NOTHING TO SUBSTANCATE THIS THROUGH Mississippi department of Corrections. Petitioner WAS MISREPRESENTED by Counsel due to Pounsels Aduising petitioner to enter the pleas of guilty based on the Resulting Sentences Running Con-CURRENT with his prior Federal Sentence, when the Federal Authorities had not consented TO This Agreement Bell & STATE, \_ SO.Z. (M:SS. 1999) The law is clear that where the defendant Recieves Any Such Advice of Counsel, And Relies ON IT, THE PLEA has NOT been knowing AND intellegently mode and is subject to ATTACK BURGIN V STATE, 522 S.W. 20 159 (No. APP. 1975). INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE of Counsel May include instances where defendants attorney MisRepresents information Regarding the plea To the defendant, Thereby inducing him to

FGAI

## LEGAL

plend guilty <u>Myers v STATE</u>, 583 SO.2d 174,177 (MISS.1991) Guilty pleas induced by promises or Assurances which go unfulfilled may be held involuntary when defendant relies on Such promises <u>Mowdy v STATE</u>, 638 SO.2d 738,747 (MISS. 1994) Plea induced by FEAR, deception or improper induce ments is not voluntary <u>UNIFORM CIRCUIT</u> <u>AND COUNTY COURT Rule BOY</u>, SUBD. A, PAR.3.

## CONCLUSION

Shelton Should Not have been time barred in The TRIAL COURT AND THOUGH NOT SU EloqUENTLY STATE HAS SATISFIED both prongs of the ineffective Assistance of Counsel Test. his CASES should be Reviewed on The MERITS AND REMANDED TO THE TRIAL COURT FOR A NEW TRIAL.