IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI FILED

STEVEN SHELTON

MAY 2 1 2007

APPELLANT

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

VS.

NO. 2006-CP-2128 consolidated with 2006-CP-2134

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JOHN R. HENRY

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

This is a consolidated appeal from Orders by the Circuit Court of Rankin County,

Mississippi denying post-conviction relief. The prisoner entered guilty pleas as to two, separate
indictments; he filed in post - conviction relief as to both of them. His appeals from denial of
post -conviction relief as to both motions were consolidated by this Court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

As to Cause Number 2006-CP-02128-COA, the facts are as follow. The prisoner entered a guilty plea on 4 October 2002 to an indictment that charged him with having sold a controlled substance. He was convicted upon his plea, and he was sentenced to serve a term of imprisonment of thirty years in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections. This sentence was to be served concurrently with the sentence imposed in Cause Number 2006-CP-02134-COA, and both were to be served concurrently with a federal sentence imposed upon the prisoner on account of his federal conviction for possession of a firearm by a convicted felon. After the prisoner served twelve years on his Mississippi convictions, he was to be released on post-release supervision for a period of five years. There were fines, costs and assessments also imposed. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 42 - 53).

The prisoner then filed a motion in post - conviction relief on 21 October 2005. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 7; 105). In this motion, the prisoner alleged that his plea of guilty was not a knowing and intelligent act; that the Circuit Court was without authority to impose the sentence meted out to the prisoner; that there was a breach of the plea agreement by the State; and that the prisoner's arrest and consent to search were contrary to law. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 8).

The Circuit Court denied relief on the prisoner's motion without an evidentiary hearing on 24 October 2005, finding that the prisoner's filing was time - barred. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 60 - 61).

The prisoner then filed a motion styled as a motion for an out - of - time appeal, this on 8 November 2005. Relief on this motion was denied on account of the fact that time had not expired on the filing of a notice of appeal. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 62 - 68).

On 25 October 2006 and 6 November 2006, the prisoner filed a motion for an out - of - time appeal. On 22 November 2006, the Circuit Court denied relief on this motion, finding that

it was not timely filed. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 70 - 111).

A notice of appeal from this Order was filed on 13 December 2006. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 70 - 111).

As to Cause Number 2006-CP-02134-COA, the facts concerning that conviction and sentence are the same, except for the fact that it concerned a separate offense of sale of a controlled substance. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 39 - 50).

The prisoner filed a motion in post - conviction relief against the conviction involved in that cause number on 21 October 2005. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 6). The grounds alleged in that motion did not include claims concerning the validity of the arrest and search but were otherwise substantially the same as in 2006-CP-02128-COA. This motion suffered the same fate as its companion motion. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 79 - 80).

On 8 November 2005, the prisoner filed a motion also styled as a motion for an out - of - time appeal. In that motion, he alleged that he had deposited his motion in post - conviction relief with prison authorities on 3 October 2005 and that it was returned to him by the Circuit Clerk on 4 October 2005 because it was incomplete. He then engaged in a long wail about how it was not his fault that he did not know that his motion was incomplete. (R. Vol. Pp. 57 - 59).

On 16 November 2005, The Circuit Court denied relief on this motion because the time to appeal had not expired. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 63).

On 6 November 2005, the prisoner filed another motion for an out - of - time appeal. This filing contained yet another whine about the prisoner's troubles in doing legal research in prison. His prayer for relief, though, was not that the motion for post - conviction relief be considered to have been timely filed. His prayer for relief was for an out - of - time appeal under Rule 4 MRAP. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 65 - 71).

Relief on this motion was denied by Order filed on 22 November 2006. Relief was denied because it was not timely filed. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 84 - 85).

The prisoner then managed to timely filed a notice of appeal as to his November, 2006 motion. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 86).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

- 1. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY DENY RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S NOVEMBER 2006 MOTION FOR AN OUT OF TIME APPEAL?
- 2. THAT ASSUMING FOR ARGUMENT THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT'S ACTION IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST CONVICTION RELIEF IS BEFORE THE COURT, THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THAT MOTION

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- 1. THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY DENIED RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S NOVEMBER 2006 MOTION FOR AN OUT-OF-TIME APPEAL
- 2. THAT ASSUMING FOR ARGUMENT THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT'S ACTION IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST CONVICTION RELIEF IS BEFORE THE COURT, THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THAT MOTION

ARGUMENT

1. THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY DENIED RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S NOVEMBER 2006 MOTION FOR AN OUT-OF-TIME APPEAL

The prisoner presents four issues on this appeal. However, we question whether his four issues are before the Court.

What the prisoner has appealed is the Circuit Court's order denying him an out-of-time appeal. The issue -- and we submit the only issue-- before this Court is whether the Circuit Court erred in denying the out - of - time appeal.

Briefly restated, the facts are that the prisoner filed a motion styled as a motion for an out-

of-time appeal after the Circuit Court denied relief on the motion in post - conviction relief. The text of the motion, however, did not mention anything about an appeal. It was in effect a motion for rehearing. The Circuit Court correctly denied relief on the motion for an out - of - time appeal because the period permitted by law to file a notice of appeal had not expired. Almost a year later, the prisoner filed a second motion for an out - of - time appeal. It was this ruling that the appellant appealed.

Under Rule 4(h) MRAP, a trial court may reopen the time for taking an appeal if: (1) it finds that a party entitled to notice of entry of an order or judgment did not receive notice from the clerk within twenty - one days of entry of the judgment and (2) that no party would be prejudiced by reopening the time for taking an appeal. If these conditions are met, then the trial court may, upon motion filed within 180 days of entry of the judgment or order or within seven days of receipt of such notice, whichever is earlier, reopen the time to take an appeal for a period not exceeding fourteen days

In the case at bar, the prisoner certainly received timely notice of the court's disposition of his post - conviction relief motion. The prisoner erroneously filed a motion for an out - of - time appeal before the time under Rule 4(a) had expired. In other words, as to the November 2006 motion, the prisoner clearly did not meet the first condition of Rule 4(h).

In addition to this, the prisoner failed to meet the second condition of Rule 4(h) in that his November 2006 filing was well beyond the 180-day period.

In view of these considerations, we think it is completely clear that the Circuit Court committed no error in denying relief on the prisoner's motion for an out - of -time appeal. The instant appeal is not properly before the Court and should be dismissed for want of jurisdiction.

The prisoner, though, asserts that the Circuit Court should have somehow divined that the

first motion for an out - of - time appeal was intended or should have been treated as a notice of appeal. Given the fact that the text of the motion mentioned nothing about an appeal but was entirely in the nature of a motion for rehearing, we do not think the Circuit Court can be faulted for not treating it as a notice of appeal. In all events, though, that is not the question here. The prisoner is before the Court on the question of whether the November 2006 motion was properly denied. His notice of appeal did not operate as to the prior orders of the Circuit Court. Time in which to appeal those orders had long expired.

2. THAT ASSUMING FOR ARGUMENT THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT'S ACTION IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF IS BEFORE THE COURT, THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THAT MOTION

In the event that this Court should determine that the disposition of the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief is properly before it, the Circuit Court was clearly correct in denying relief on the motion.

The prisoner was convicted and sentenced on 4 October 2002. By the prisoner's own admission, he did not deposit his motion in post - conviction relief with prison authorities until 3 October 2005. (Brief for the prisoner at 2). According to the prisoner, the Circuit Clerk returned the motion as "incomplete." The prisoner finally filed his motion with the Circuit Court on 21 October 2005.

Under the prison mailbox rule, a motion in post -conviction relief is considered filed on the date a prisoner gives his motion to prison authorities for mailing. *Melton v. State*, 930 So.2d 452 (Miss. Ct. App. 2006). However, this rule presumes that the motion so given to prison authorities meets the pleading requirements of the Uniform Post - Conviction Relief Act. Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-9 (Supp. 2006). While the record does not appear to establish the

reason or reasons the motion was returned to the prisoner, unfiled, it does not appear that he makes any claim that it was an error for it to have been so returned, rather than filed.

The prisoner's filing was thus time - barred under Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-5(2) (Supp. 2006), unless some exception provided therein existed in his favor. There were none.

In the prisoner's statement of issues (Brief for the prisoner at 1), the ineffective assistance of counsel claims are clearly not within any of the exceptions to the statute of limitations. As for the claims that the Circuit Court erred in denying his motions, these fit no exception either. On the other hand, the prisoner has wholly failed to establish that some intervening decision exists which would actually have adversely affected the outcome of his conviction or that some evidence exists not reasonably discoverable at the time of trial, that would have practically conclusively caused a different result at trial.

The prisoner was well aware of the three-year statute of limitations. Yet he waited until the last day to attempt to file his motion. This was a risk he took, in the event that the motion failed to comply with the requirements of post - conviction relief. He should not be heard here to complain that his untimely filing was somehow the fault of one thing or another, but not himself.

The appears to have raised several other issues in his failed post - conviction relief attempt. Since he does not appear to renew them here, they are abandoned. *Walker v. State*, 861 So.2d 354 (Miss. Ct. App. 2003). It is thus unnecessary to consider them.

CONCLUSION

The Order of the Circuit Court denying relief on the prisoner's motion for an out - of - time appeal should be affirmed. In the event that this Court should find that the Order denying relief on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief is properly before the Court for review, that Order should be affirmed.